1990

Lloyd D. Coley v. Nancy P. Coley : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

THE APPELLANT CONTENDS THAT THE ORDERS OF JUDGE SAWAYA VIOLATE THE U. S. CONSTITUTIONS' FIRST, EIGHT AND FOURTEEN AMENDMENTS.

THE APPELLANT CONTENDS THAT ORDERS OF JUDGE SAWAYA WRONGFULLY DENY HIS VISITATION RIGHTS WITH HIS DAUGHTER.

THE APPELLANT CONTENDS THAT JUDGE SAWAYA ABUSED THE POWERS OF CONTEMPT IN DENYING APPELLANT VISITATION RIGHTS.

THE APPELLANT CONTENDS THAT JUDGE SAWAYA WRONGFULLY SIGNED ORDER OVER THE TIMELY FILED OBJECTIONS OF APPELLANT AND THEN DID NOT ALLOW APPELLANT TO OBJECT TO THE AMENDED ORDER.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN SIGNING AN ORDER THAT IS UNCONSTITUTIONAL.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN TERMINATING VISITATION FOR THE SOLE REASON OF NON-PAYMENT OF CHILD SUPPORT.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN CONDITIONING THE RESTORATION OF VISITATION RIGHTS UPON THE PAYMENT AND COMPLIANCE WITH SUPPORT ORDERS.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN USING IT'S CONTEMPT POWER TO DENY AND TERMINATE VISITATION.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DENYING VISITATION BY NOT REQUIRING THE DEFENDANT TO FILE A PETITION TO MODIFY.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN SIGNING A ORDER OVER THE TIMELY FILED OBJECTIONS TO SAID ORDER.

JURISDICTION

THIS IS AN APPEAL FROM THE FINAL ORDER OF JULY 13, 1990 AND THE FINAL ORDER OF JANUARY 9, 1991, BEFORE JAMES S. SAWAYA, JUDGE OF THE THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT, SALT LAKE CITY, STATE OF UTAH.

THIS APPEAL WAS FILED BY NOTICE OF APPEAL ON AUGUST 13, 1990, TO THE Z
ABOVE COURT.

THIS COURT HAS JURISDICTION OVER THIS APPEAL BY VIRTUE OF UTAH CODE ANNOTATED 77-35-26 (2A) AND (B), AND RULE 3 OF THE RULES OF THE UTAH COURT OF APPEALS.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

ON FEBRUARY 24, 1990, RESPONDENT FILED A AFFIDAVIT AND ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE AGAINST THE APPELLANT, ASKING THE COURT TO HOLD THE APPELLANT IN CONTEMPT AND DENY ANY CONTACT WITH HIS DAUGHTER TO HIM.

ON JUNE 18, 1990, JUDGE SAWAYA HEAR RESPONDENT ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE AND FOUND THE APPELLANT GUILTY OF CONTEMPT; SENTENCED HIM TO 30 IN THE COUNTY JAIL; DENY HIM ALL CONTACT WITH HIS DAUGHTER.

ON AUGUST 13, 1990, APPELLANT FILED A NOTICE OF APPEAL TO THIS COURT.

ON OCTOBER 10, THIS COURT VACATED THE DENIAL OF APPELLANT'S VISITATION RIGHTS.

ON JANUARY 9, 1991, JUDGE SAWAYA SIGNED A AMENDED ORDER AGAIN DENYING APPELLANT ALL CONTACT WITH HIS DAUGHTER.

STATEMENT OF CASE

THE PETITIONER FILED FOR DIVORCE ON THE 31ST DAY OF DECEMBER, 1981, (DISTRICT COURT INDEX #2,, HEREAFTER REFERRED TO AS DCI). ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1982 THE DIVORCE WAS GRANTED TO BECOME EFFECTIVE AFTER THE 3-MONTH INTERLOCUTORY PERIOD (DCI# 12-14). PETITIONER AGREED BY STIPULATION TO PAY TO RESPONDENT, THE SUM OF \$250.00 PER MONTH AS CHILD SUPPORT, A SUM THAT WAS EQUAL TO 75% OF PETITIONER GROSS INCOME (DCI#7-10).

ON THE SEPTEMBER 29, 1982 PETITIONER FILED FOR PROTECTION UNDER CHAPTER 7 OF THE FEDERAL BANKRUPTCY ACT.

ON THE OCTOBER 12, 1982, RESPONDENT FILED A ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE, (DCI# 20). IN SAID ORDER RESPONDENT ASKED THE COURT TO HOLD THE PETITIONER IN CONTEMPT. THIS WAS DONE BEFORE THE DIVORCE BECAME FINAL AND WHILE THE PETITIONER WAS UNDER THE PROTECTION OF THE FEDERAL BANKRUPTCY ACT.

AFTER THE PETITIONER'S BANKRUPTCY WAS DISCHARGED HE PAID THE RESPONDENT ALL PAST DUE CHILD SUPPORT.

ON THE SEPTEMBER 27, 1982, RESPONDENT FILED A ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE (DCI# 40), ASKING THE COURT AGAIN TO FIND RESPONDENT IN CONTEMPT. THE CONTEMPT INVOLVED THE PROPERTY SETTLEMENT AND WAS PREVIOUSLY DISCHARGED IN THE BANKRUPTCY. SAID O.S.C. WAS STRICKEN ON THE 8TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 1983 (DCI# 47). PETITIONER AGREED TO PAY THE PAST DEBT AND A

ORDER CONFORMING TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN PARTIES WAS SIGNED BY THE COURT ON THE 7TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 1984 (DCI# 53-55).

ON THE APRIL 20, 1984 PETITIONER FILED A MOTION TO AMEND THE DIVORCE DECREE TO ALLOW THE PETITIONER TO EXPAND HIS VISITATION BECAUSE RESPONDENT UNREASONABLY WAS DENYING HIM REASONABLE VISITATION (DCI# 60). SAID MOTION WAS STIPULATED TO AND THE ORDER GRANTING SAID REQUEST WAS SIGNED ON THE 21ST OF JUNE 1984 (DCI# 65-67)

ON AUGUST 6, 1985 PETITIONER FILED A ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE BECAUSE RESPONDENT WAS DENYING HIM VISITATION WITH HIS DAUGHTER (DCI# 68). RESPONDENT AGREED TO ALLOW VISITATION TO RESUME AND THE O.S.C. WAS STRICKEN.

ON MARCH 27, 1986, RESPONDENT FILED A ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE AND PETITION FOR MODIFICATION (DCI# 71 & 74-83). IN THESE MOTIONS AND ORDERS RESPONDENT WANTED THE COURT TO HOLD THE PETITIONER IN CONTEMPT AND TO DENY HIS VISITATION WITH HIS DAUGHTER, UNTIL HE PAID THE PAST DUE CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENTS, AND THEN TO RESTRICT PETITIONERS'S FUTURE VISITATION. JUDGE FISHLER DENIED RESPONDENT REQUESTS AND ALLOWED THE PETITIONER TO FILE A PETITION TO REDUCE CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT AND STAYED ANY CONTEMPT PROCEEDING AGAINST PETITIONER UNTIL A REVIEW OF THE ABILITY OF THE PETITIONER TO PAY SUPPORT IS ACCESSED. THE PETITIONER WAS PAYING THE RESPONDENT BETWEEN \$200.00 AND \$400.00 PER MONTH WHEN THE RESPONDENT FILED HER O.S.C. (DCI# 81-82).

JUDGE FISHLER WAS SO OFFENDED BY THE RESPONDENT AND HER ATTORNEY THAT HE RECUSED HIMSELF AND ASSIGNED THIS CASE TO JUDGE SAWAYA (DCI# 84).

ON APRIL 14, 1986, PETITIONER FILED HIS COUNTER-PETITION FOR MODIFICATION OF DIVORCE DECREE (DCI# 87-88).

ON APRIL 22, 1986, JUDGE SAWAYA SIGNED THE ORDER OF JUDGE FISHLER IN WHICH #2 OF THE JUDGEMENT STATES "THE ISSUED OF CONTEMPT AGAINST PLAINTIFF FOR HIS FAILURE TO PAY JUDGEMENTS AND OBLIGATION IS RESERVED UNTIL THE HEARING ON A PETITION BY PLAINTIFF FOR MODIFICATION OF THE DECREE OF DIVORCE WHICH WILL ADDRESS THE ISSUE OF THE PLAINTIFF'S ABILITY TO PAY SAID JUDGEMENTS." (DCI# 95-9)

ON OCTOBER 14, 1986 THE PETITIONER ATTEMPTED TO PROCEED WITH HIS PETITION TO MODIFY BY FILING A REQUEST FOR TRIAL SETTING. (DCI# 101).

COMMISSIONER SANDRA PEULAR SET A PRE-TRIAL SETTLEMENT FOR FEBRUARY 13, 1987. (DCI# 104)

RESPONDENT RESISTED ANY SETTLEMENT AND FILED OBJECTION TO REQUEST FOR TRIAL SETTING. (DCI# 105).

ON MARCH 17, 1988 PETITIONER WAS BEING DENIED HIS VISITATION AND FILED A ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE TO FORCE RESPONDENT TO ALLOW HIS VISITATION WITH HIS DAUGHTER. (DCI# 111-2).

RESPONDENT CLAIMED IT WAS UNFAIR THAT SHE COULD BE CALLED TO COURT TO ANSWER FOR DENYING VISITATION WHEN PETITIONER WAS DELINQUENT IN HIS CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENTS. (DCI# 125).

ON 18, APRIL, 1988 COMMISSIONER PEULER FOUND NO CONTEMPT OF THE PETITIONER AT THIS TIME AND RESPONDENT

PROMISED TO ALLOW PETITIONER HIS VISITATION FROM NOW ON. (DCI# 129).

ON MAY 6, 1988, RESPONDENT FILED A ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE AND REQUESTED THAT THE PLAINTIFF PAY THE FULL AMOUNT OF HER ATTORNEY FEES, BEGIN MAKING CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENTS WITH A WEEKLY REDUCTION OF THE JUDGEMENT, AND THAT PLAINTIFF BE ADVISED THAT IF HE DOES NOT COMPLY HE WILL BE ARRESTED AND JAILED UNTIL HE IS WILLING TO COMPLY. (DCI# 135). RESPONDENT FILED AT THE SAME TIME A PETITION TO DENY PETITIONER ALTERNATE FRIDAY VISITS. (DCI# 140)

AFTER SEVERAL DELAYS AND CONTINUANCES RESPONDENT'S O.S.C. CAME BEFORE JUDGE SAWAYA ON OCTOBER 3, 1988. PETITIONER AND HIS ATTORNEY WERE WILLING TO STIPULATE TO THE CONDITIONS OF THE O.S.C.. HOWEVER JUDGE SAWAYA MADE HIS OWN MOTION AND ORDERED IT BE HEARD AT THE END OF HIS LAW AND MOTION CALENDER THAT DAY. JUDGE SAWAYA THEN FOUND THE PETITIONER GUILTY OF CONTEMPT, SENTENCED HIM TO SERVED 30 DAY IN THE COUNTY JAIL, STAYED IMPOSITION OF JAIL SENTENCE FOR 60 DAYS TO ALLOW THE PETITONER TO PURGE THE CONTEMPT BY PAYING THE RESPONDENT A SIGNIFICANT AMOUNT OF MONEY. (DCI# 170)

DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER OF 1989 THE PETITIONER SERVED HIS JAIL SENTENCE.

ON FEBRUARY 24, 1990 RESPONDENT FILED A ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE, IN THIS O.S.C. RESPONDENT REQUESTED THE SUSPEND VISITATION OF PETITIONER UNTIL HE IS NOT IN CONTEMPT OF COURT AND PAYING HER SUPPORT. (DCI# 214)

ON APRIL 13, 1990 THE COURT CANCELED THE HEARING ON RESPONDENT'S O.S.C. AND RESPONDENT FILED A NOTICE OF CONTINUANCE. (DCI# 258)

ON APRIL 24, 1990, THE PETITIONER APPEARED AT THE O.S.C. HEARING AND WAS TOLD BY THE COURT CLERK THAT THE HEARING HAS BEEN CANCELLED AND THAT THE RESPONDENT WOULD HAVE TO SERVED THE PETITIONER WITH A NEW O.S.C. BEFORE SHE COULD HAVE HER O.S.C. HEARD BY THE JUDGE.

ON MAY 21, 1990 THE RESPONDENT, THOUGH HER ATTORNEY, ASKED JUDGE SAWAYA TO ISSUE A BENCH WARRANT FOR THE ARREST OF THE PETITIONER BECAUSE HE HAD NOT SHOWN FOR THE O.S.C.. THE PETITIONER HAD NOT BEEN SERVED WITH A NEW O.S.C. AND THEREFORE FELT HE DID NOT HAVE TO ATTEND, HOWEVER, PETITIONER KNEW OF JUDGE SAWAYA BIAS AGAINST HIM AND SENT RAY STODDARD, A ATTORNEY THAT HAD REPRESENTED HIM EARLY IN THIS CASE, TO INFORM JUDGE SAWAYA THAT PETITIONER HAD NOT BEEN SERVED WITH THE O.S.C. AND THAT THE PETITIONER AND HIS ATTORNEY COULD BE IN JUDGE SAWAYA COURT ROOM WITHIN 15 MINUTES IF JUDGE SAWAYA WANTED TO HOLD THE HEARING. JUDGE SAWAYA STATED THAT HE KNEW WHAT WAS GOING ON AND THEN ISSUED A NO BAIL BENCH WARRANT AGAINST PETITIONER. (DCI# 254)

WHEN MR. STODDARD TOLD THE PETITIONER OF JUDGE SAWAYA ACTIONS HE DIRECTED HIS ATTORNEY TO CONTACT JUDGE SAWAYA AND HAVE THE WARRANT RECALLED. ONLY AFTER JUDGE SAWAYA WAS SHOWN THE DOCKET PRINTOUT SHOWING THE CANCELLING OF THE O.S.C. HEARING DID JUDGE SAWAYA RECALL THE WARRANT, HOWEVER HE RULED THAT RESPONDENT DID NOT HAD TO SERVE THE PETITIONER

WITH A O.S.C. AND SET THE HEARING FOR JUNE 18, 1990. (DCI# 256-9)

ON JUNE 18, 1990 JUDGE SAWAYA FOUND THE PETITIONER GUILTY OF CONTEMPT, DENIED ALL CONTACT BETWEEN PETITIONER AND HIS DAUGHTER, SENTENCED THE PETITIONER TO SERVE 30 DAY IN THE COUNTY JAIL AND STAYED THE IMPOSITION OF THE JAIL SENTENCE FOR 30 DAY TO ALLOW THE PETITIONER TO PAY THE RESPONDENT SOME MONEY. (DCI# 262)

ON JULY 13, 1990 JUDGE SAWAYA SIGNED A ORDER OVER THE TIMELY FILED OBJECTIONS OF THE PETITIONER, THOSE OBJECTIONS WERE NOT FRIVOLOUS NOR WERE FILED FILED AS A DELAYING TACTIC. (DCI# 268-71)

ON JULY 16, 1990, PETITIONER FILED A AFFIDAVIT OF BIAS DIRECTED TOWARD THE BIAS CONDUCT OF JUDGE SAWAYA. AT THE HEARIN LATER THAT SAME DAY PETITIONER TOLD JUDGE SAWAYA THAT HE HAD FILED A AFFIDAVIT OF BAIS EARLIER AND ACCORDING THE THE RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURES HE COULD NO LONGER PROCEED UNTIL THE AFFIDAVIT OF BIAS WERE REVIEW BY THE PRESIDING JUDGE. JUDGE SAWAYA ACCEPT A COPY TO THE AFFIDAVIT BUT STATED HE WAS NOT BIAS AND THEN WHEN ON TO HOLD THE REVIEW HEARING. (DCI# 298)

ON AUGUST 7, 1990, JUDGE MURPHY DENIED PETITIONER AFFIDAVIT OF BIAS. (DCI# 298)

ON AUGUST 13, 1990 PETITIONER FILED A NOTICE OF APPEAL FOR BOTH THE JULY 13 ORDER OF JUDGE SAWAYA AND THE AUGUST 7 ORDER DENYING THE AFFIDAVIT OF BIAS BY JUDGE MURPHY. (DCI# 316)

ON OCTOBER 10, 1990, THE COURT OF APPEALS VACATED JUDGE SAWAYA ORDER AS IT RELATES TO VISITATION.

ON JANUARY 9 1991 JUDGE SAWAYA SIGNED A AMENDED ORDER AGAIN DENYING PETITIONER VISITATION RIGHTS.

PETITIONER THEN ASKED THE COURT OF APPEALS TO REVIEW THE JANUARY 9TH ORDER AND STAY THE EFFECT OF SAID UNTIL THE CASE COULD BE GIVING A FAIR HEARING.

ON FEBRUARY 4, 1991, THE COURT OF APPEALS DENIED THE PETITIONER'S REQUEST FOR STAY.

ARGUMENTS

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN SIGNING AN ORDER THAT IS UNCONSTITUTIONAL.

THE APPELLANT CONTENDS THAT THERE IS A CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT OF A PARENT TO MAINTAIN A PERSONAL AND CLOSE RELATIONSHIP WITH THEIR CHILDREN.

A PARENT HAS A "FUNDAMENTAL RIGHT, PROTECTED BY THE CONSTITUTION, TO SUSTAIN HIS RELATIONSHIP WITH HIS CHILD." STATE IN RE WALTER B., UTAH, 577 P.2ND 119, 124 (1978).

IN MEYER V. NEBRASKA, 262 U.S. 390, 399, 43 S.Ct. 625, 626, 67 L.Ed. 1042 (1923), THE SUPREME COURT INCLUDED FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS IN THE "LIBERTY" OF WHICH A STATE CANNOT DEPRIVE ANY PERSON WITHOUT DUE PROCESS OF LAW UNDER THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

THE RIGHTS INHERENT IN FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS-HUSBAND-WIFE, PARENT-CHILD AND SIBLING-ARE THE MOST OBVIOUS EXAMPLES OF RIGHTS RETAINED BY THE PEOPLE. THEY ARE "NATURAL," "INTRINSIC," OR "PRIOR" IN THE SENSE THAT OUR CONSTITUTIONS PRESUPPOSE THEM,...IN RE J.P., UTAH 648 P.2D 1373. THIS PARENTAL RIGHT TRANSCENDS ALL PROPERTY AND ECONOMIC RIGHTS. IT IS ROOTED NOT IN STATE OR FEDERAL STATUTORY OR CONSTITUTIONAL LAW, TO WHICH IT IS LOGICALLY AND CHRONOLOGICALLY PRIOR, BUT IN NATURE AND HUMAN

INSTINCT. SUPRA.@ 1373. "...TERMINATION OF PARENTAL RIGHTS SOLELY ON THE BASIS OF THE CHILD'S BEST INTEREST AND WITHOUT ANY FINDING OF PARENTAL UNFITNESS, ABANDONMENT, OR SUBSTANTIAL NEGLECT, VIOLATES THE PARENT'S LIBERTY RIGHTS UNDER THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION." SUPRA @ 1375

THE ORDER OF JANUARY 9TH DID NOT FIND, AS REQUIRED ABOVE, ANY FINDING OF UNFITNESS, ABANDONMENT OR SUBSTANTIAL NEGLECT AND THEREFORE MUST BE FOUND IN CONTRADICTION WITH THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND BE OVERTURNED.

THE APPELLANT NEXT CONTENDS THAT THE ORDER VIOLATES THE EIGHT AMENDMENT, OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION IN THAT IT CALL FOR CRUEL AND UNUSUAL PUNISHMENT. IT IS UNUSUAL BECAUSE NO OTHER COURT HAS EVER DENIED ALL CONTACT BETWEEN PARENT AND CHILD FOR THE REASON STATED IN THE FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW OF THIS ORDER. IT IS CRUEL BECAUSE IT DESTROYS A LOVING RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN PARENT AND CHILD AND IT ALLOWS THE CUSTODIAL PARENT TO TELL THE CHILD THAT HER FATHER DOES NOT LOVE HER ANYMORE BECAUSE IT DOES NOT WANT TO SEE HER ANYMORE, A FACT ALLEGED IN PETITIONER SUPPORTING AFFIDAVIT FOR STAY BEFORE THE COURT OF APPEALS AND LEFT UNCHALLENGED BY RESPONDENT AT THE HEARING OR ANY OTHER PLACE.

THE APPELLANT CONTENDS THAT THE ORDER VIOLATES THE FOURTEEN AMENDMENT OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, IN THAT HE HAS BEEN DENIED DUE PROCESS. UTAH LAW REQUIRES "A SUBSTANTIAL CHANGE IN CIRCUMSTANCES MUST BE FOUND BEFORE A

CUSTODY DECREE IS MODIFIED." SMITH V. SMITH, 793 P.2d 409. ALSO IN HODGGE V. HODGEE, 649 P.2d 51 (UTAH 1982), HODGEE HELD THAT A PARENT SEEKING A CHANGE IN CUSTODY OF A CHILD MUST FIRST ESTABLISH THAT THERE HAS BEEN A SUBSTANTIAL AND MATERIAL CHANGE IN THE CIRCUMSTANCES UPON WHICH THE ORIGINAL CUSTODY AWARD WAS BASED.

IN ALL CASE, EXCEPT FOR THIS ONE, THE COURT HAS REQUIRED A PETITION TO MODIFY BEFORE CHANGING CUSTODIAL ARRANGEMENT, RESPONDENT HAS TRIED AND FAILED IN SEVERAL ATTEMPTS TO LIMIT THE VISITATION OF APPELLANT, THOUGH THE REGULAR PETITIONS TO MODIFY, NOW WITH ORDER TO SHOW TO CAUSE AS PUNISHMENT TO THE APPELLANT JUDGE SAWAYA HAS DENIED VISITATION RIGHTS AND IN EFFECT MODIFIED THE DIVORCE DECREE, DENYING THE APPELLANT HIS DUE PROCESS OF CHALLENGING THE ASSERTIONS AND PRESENTING HIS DEFENSES.

JUDGE SAWAYA STATED IF HE FOUND THE NONPAYMENT OF CHILD WAS WILLFUL HE COULD TERMINATE VISITATION, (TRANSCRIPT OF JUNE 18, 1990, PAGES 37 LINES 23-25, PAGE 38 LINES 1-4). JUDGE TOOK NO EVIDENCE CONCERNING THE BEST INTEREST OF THE CHILD HOWEVER, IN THE JANUARY 9TH ORDER JUDGE SAWAYA FOUND IT WAS IN THE BEST INTEREST OF THE CHILD NOT TO HAVE ANY CONTACT WITH HER FARTHER, "BECAUSE THE FAILURE TO PAY CHILD SUPPORT HAS BEEN WILLFUL, THE COURT FINDS THAT PLAINTIFF DOES NOT, IN PART, RESPECT THE LEGAL SYSTEM OR THE LAW REQUIRING PAYMENT OF CHILD SUPPORT. FOR THAT REASON, THE COURT FINDS THAT PLAINTIFF'S ATTITUDES AND BEHAVIORS ARE ANTI-SOCIAL AND CONSTITUTES A SUBSTANTIAL DEVIATION FROM THE

MORAL NORMS OF SOCIETY". (FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW RE: JANUARY 9, 1991 ORDER). THUS JUDGE SAWAYA BY NOT REQUIRING THE RESPONDENT TO FOLLOW THE STATUTORIAL PROCEDURE AND PRESENT HER EVIDENCE AND ALLOW THE APPELLANT TO COUNTER WITH HIS DEFENSES AND EVIDENCE DENIED APPELLANT HIS DUE PROCESS OF LAW.

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