1990

# Lloyd D. Coley v. Nancy P. Coley : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Amended Order<sup>7</sup> signed by Judge Sawaya does not violate the First, Eighth, or Fourteenth Amendments of the United States Constitution as argued by Plaintiff.

Judge Sawaya found that Plaintiff's non-payment of child support was willful and contumacious and that it was in the best interest of the minor child not to have visitation with Plaintiff.

The district court did not err in conditioning the restoration of visitation rights upon compliance with support orders.

---

<sup>6</sup> Amending the June 18, 1990 Order on Order to Show Cause.

<sup>7</sup> January 9, 1991.

U.C.A. §78-32-10 does not prevent the district court from restricting visitation privileges, if the court finds that the restriction is in the best interests of the child.

An order to show cause proceeding is proper for the purpose of suspending and/or terminating Plaintiff's visitation.

The district court can sign an order even though objections have been filed if the district court finds the objections have no merit.

Plaintiff fails to support his contention that Judge Sawaya is biased.

Defendant is entitled to an award of attorney fees on appeal.



### ARGUMENT

1. THE ORDER SIGNED BY JUDGE SAWAYA DOES NOT VIOLATE THE FIRST, EIGHTH, OR FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AS ARGUED BY PLAINTIFF.

Plaintiff states in his Brief (p. 13) that "there is a constitutional right of a parent to maintain a personal and close relationship with their [sic] children" and cites to several cases to support his position. (Interest of Walter B., 577 P.2d 119 (Utah 1978); Meyer vs. Nebraska, 262 U.S. 390, 399, 43 S.Ct. 625, 626, L.Ed. 1042 (1923); and In Re J.P., 648 P.2d 1364 (Utah 1982). All of these cases involve the termination of parental rights. Plaintiff's reliance on these cases is flawed for two reasons: first, the cases are limited in scope to permanent termination of parental rights while case at hand is far more limited in that Judge Sawaya merely suspended Plaintiff's visitation until he exhibits behavior consistent with the best interests of his daughter; and, second, the cases are cited out-of-context of the law governing suspending of visitation rights because there are numerous cases that empower a court to restrict or suspend visitation rights under certain fact situations.

Termination of parental rights means the permanent elimination of all parental rights and duties, by court order. (See, Utah Code Ann., §78-3a-2(14). In the present case, Judge Sawaya did not permanently eliminate the Plaintiff's parental rights or his

visitation. The Judge merely suspended the Plaintiff's visitation until he responsibly responds to the needs of his daughter. Plaintiff errs in trying to insert into this case legal authorities which pertain to permanent parental-right deprivation situations.

This case is not about permanently terminating Plaintiff's parental rights; it is about a parent's responsibility to help his ex-wife raise their child. Plaintiff may think that because his ex-wife has a home and employment -- and because his daughter gets fed, clothed and cared for without assistance from him -- that this is just a case of legal semantics where he can play lawyer and appeal his case<sup>8</sup> and spend countless hours trying to legally justify why he does not financially support his daughter. However, this is a case where, as Judge Sawaya found, Plaintiff's failure to pay child support is willful and contumacious. It does not take a legal scholar to rightly conclude that a man who willfully refuses to support his child does not have her best interest at heart or in mind.

---

<sup>8</sup> On February 8, 1989 Plaintiff filed a Petition for Writ of Prohibition against Judge Sawaya in this Court. On July 28, 1989 this Court determined that the Petition was frivolous and therefore denied the same. On August, 1990 Plaintiff filed a Notice of Appeal in the matter at hand. Since the filing of the Notice, Plaintiff has filed several motions and this matter was heard by this Court back in October, 1990. Plaintiff has continued with the matter since that time and has filed several more motions and has even filed a Petition for Writ of Certiorari with the Utah Supreme Court with respect to the Order of this Court denying Plaintiff's Motion to Stay.

Plaintiff next argues that the Amended Order violates the Eighth Amendment of the United States Constitution as it constitutes cruel and unusual punishment. There are several cases in which visitation has been suspended or conditioned and Defendant will cite those cases below. Plaintiff's only support for his argument that suspension of visitation amounts to cruel and unusual punishment is his own subjective belief that it does.

The credibility of Plaintiff's statement, that the Amended Order destroys a loving relationship, is undermined by the fact that Plaintiff, of his own accord, willfully refuses to financially support his child and he physically abandoned her between February, 1989 until after November, 1989.<sup>9</sup>

Plaintiff further contends that the Amended Order violates the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution by denying him due process. Plaintiff has had more than ample opportunity to show Judge Sawaya, as supported by the entire record, that he genuinely loves and cares for his daughter in not only word but, as important, in deed.

Finally, Plaintiff argues that the Amended Order violates his First Amendment rights of free speech. The district court did not rule that Plaintiff could not possess the attitudes and beliefs he portrays, or that he could not express them in public places. The

---

<sup>9</sup> See Defendant's Statement of Facts #7.

district court simply ruled that it was not in the best interest of the minor child to be exposed to Plaintiff's anti-social attitudes and beliefs through contact with him. The district court is not punishing Plaintiff for his beliefs but is only trying to impress upon Plaintiff his proper behavior and responsibility to his daughter. Specifically, Plaintiff has a parental responsibility to bring up his daughter to be the best citizen possible.

Therefore, nothing in the Amended Order contradicts the Constitution of the United States and it does not in any manner violate Plaintiff's rights.

**2. JUDGE SAWAYA FOUND THAT PLAINTIFF'S NON-PAYMENT OF CHILD SUPPORT WAS WILLFUL AND CONTUMACIOUS AND THAT IT WAS IN THE BEST INTEREST OF THE PARTIES' MINOR CHILD NOT TO HAVE VISITATION WITH PLAINTIFF.**

Plaintiff alleges that Judge Sawaya suspended his visitation for the sole reason that Plaintiff is willfully not paying his court-ordered child support. The Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Amended Order clearly takes into consideration the best

interest of the child as required under Rohr vs. Rohr, 709 P.2d 382 (Utah 1985).<sup>10</sup>

The Lunsford, Slade, West, Soderburg, Smith, and Dana cases, cited by Plaintiff, are erroneously utilized by Plaintiff; the portions of those cases that he refers to are taken out of context.

In Lunsford vs. Waldrip, 493 P.2d 789 at 792 (Wash. App. 1972), the Washington Court of Appeals stated:

The paramount concern in such matters [suspending visitation] is the welfare of the child, and the conduct of the father as it affects the child's welfare is a proper consideration for the trial court.

How can it be in the best interest of any child to be raised by a parent who refuses, unless faced with jail or suspension of visitation, to pay any support to help provide food, clothing, shelter, etc. for that child? In the present case, the district court found that Plaintiff was educated, healthy and able to provide the ordered support and that Plaintiff had not given the district court any reason whatsoever as to why Plaintiff had not paid the support as ordered.

Slade vs. Slade, 594 P.2d 898 (Utah 1979), was an action by a father to establish visitation rights with his child who was born

---

<sup>10</sup> ... where the noncustodial parent's refusal to pay child support is contumacious, or willful and intentional, and not due to inability to pay, visitation rights may be reduced or denied, if the welfare of the child so requires. Rohr (p.383).

out of wedlock and the Utah Supreme Court found that "visitation is a matter addressed to the district court's sound discretion". (Slade at 901).

In West vs. West, 487 P.2d 96 (Or. App. 1971), the case involved an order by the trial court conditioning the father's visitation upon the father paying the court ordered child support. The Oregon Court of Appeals stated that "the right of visitation cannot be made dependent upon the payment of support for children ....". However, the court upheld the trial court's order:

[T]he order was set for the purpose of bringing home to the defendant a sense of responsibility for the child. (West at 98)

Soderburg vs. Soderburg, 299 P.2d 479 (Idaho 1956), is a case where the father petitioned the trial court for a restraining order so that the children's mother could not transport the children out of the court's jurisdiction.

Plaintiff's reliance on Smith vs. Smith, 135 Utah Adv. Rep. 33 (Utah App. 1990) is inappropriate because the language quoted by Plaintiff refers to a situation where a party sought a change in custody because the other party had interfered with visitation rights.

Plaintiff's reliance on Dana vs. Dana, 131 Utah Adv. Rep. 76 (Utah App. 1990) is similarly mistaken because the visitation issue in that case focused on the mother's complaint that the father did

not exercise visitation and she wanted him to be ordered to comply with the visitation schedule or be ordered to pay additional child support to offset her babysitting expenses.

In Reardon vs. Reardon, 415 P.2d 571 at 574 (Ariz. App. 1966) the Arizona Court of Appeals stated:

The denial of [sic] right of visitation conditioned upon payment of support monies is based on the premise that the primary beneficiaries of support payments are the children and that the court may balance the equities by requiring the husband to make the payments for the benefit of the children before visitation is allowed, against allowing the father to visit the children regardless of whether the father cares enough to provide adequate support for his children or not.

We are not persuaded there was error in requiring the father to keep up his payments of \$25 per month, as a condition to his seeing them and having temporary custody once a week. This is not to be construed as a bartering of justice, but rather a holding that to this extent the father must perform the duty to support his children, if he expects the pleasure of their companionship. The court holds out an inducement to perform a father's duty. Since the court retains full control over this matter, so as to suit orders to conditions that may arise, ....

In the case at hand, The Plaintiff has failed to provide support for his daughter for several years except when faced with jail. The only actions which have prompted payments by Plaintiff have been jail sentences, yet after serving the first jail sentence, Plaintiff still made no child support payments until

faced with a second jail sentence. In suspending Plaintiff's visitation for a period of time, Judge Sawaya is trying to help Plaintiff realize and understand that he (Plaintiff) has a responsibility to support his daughter.

Therefore, the Amended Order did not suspend Plaintiff's visitation for the sole reason of non-payment of support.

At this point, a review of Rohr is appropriate. The facts in Rohr and the facts in the present case are compared as follows:

1. Amount of Father's Child-Support Arrearage. At the time the issue of suspending visitation came before the district court, the amount of the father's child-support delinquency was:

a. In Rohr: \$2,400. Id. at 383.

b. In Coley: \$27,305.00 (Amended Order).

2. Number of Child-Support Judgments Against Father.

At the time the issue of suspending visitation came before the district court, the court had entered judgments for child support against the father:

a. In Rohr: Not apparent from case test.

b. In Coley: 4 previous times. (Record at 223).

3. Conditions on Restoration of Visitation. At the time the issue of suspending visitation came before the



district court, the district court conditioned restoration of visitation upon:

- a. In Rohr: Payment of all arrearages of alimony, child support, attorney's fees and costs, at which time the court would determine what visitation would be appropriate. Id. at 383.
- b. In Coley: Payment of \$450 per month for 4 consecutive months (i.e. ongoing support of \$250 per month and payment of \$200 per month toward the arrearage judgment of \$27,305.00 which was accruing interest of \$273.05 per month at the rate of 12% per annum post-judgment interest.)

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